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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
April 15, 2010 is now in session. The time is 9:05. Good morning, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I hope you drop off your income tax...papers by midnight
tonight. So, just a reminder to everybody.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Income tax is due. At this time, the Chair would like to
recognize the Members that are present this morning. We do have Member
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, and aloha, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And again supporting the Committee is our
faithful Staff, Legislative Analysts, Gayle Revels and Scott Kaneshina and our
Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier. As always we do have the Budget
Director with us-MR. PABLO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Fred Pablo, good morning. And our First Deputy
Corporation Counsel, Traci Fujita Villarosa. This morning we're so privileged to
have the County Clerk as well as the Deputy County Clerk with us; Mr. Lance
Taguchi, who is the Deputy, and Mr. Kuwada, who is the County Clerk. This
morning, Members, we do have someone that has signed up for public testimony.
And for those of you that are providing testimony this morning, you have three
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minutes to provide your testimony. After two minutes has gone by, Staff will let
you know that you have one minute to go. If everyone can turn off their cell
phones, or put it on the silent mode. Thank you, and, sir, if you can give us your
name, organization that you represent the Committee would appreciate that. The
testifier is Richard Dan.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. DAN: My name is Richard Dan, good morning. Thank you. Good morning, thank
you all for your hard work. I appreciate it very much. I've been a merchant on
Market Street in Wailuku for over 30 years. I've seen a lot changes on Market
Street over that time. I've been on the committees for both the Wailuku
Community Association and the Wailuku Main Street Association for parking.
Parking is an issue in Wailuku at this point in time. In the last few years we've
lost 23 parking spots on Market Street, due to the gentrification And we lost ten
parking spots in the back parking lot behind Lokahi, by the MRA giving ten spot,
ten parking spots in a public parking lot become more or less privatized. Over the
years I've spoken before the MRA, and spoken with a lot of people about parking
in Wailuku. I've seen nothing constructive done with regard to parking now. I
see a lot of plans for the future. I've been hearing plans for the future about
parking in Wailuku for over 20 years. Before this present gentrification
renovation happened when we were all talking about it, I was at a County meeting
where they said, they would not do the renovation on Market Street before they
built a new parking lot. Well that changed. I encourage you folks to do
everything you can to help the Wailuku parking situation out, to give as much,
when you're considering money, give as much money towards it. But please give
it to someplace where they're going to make use of this money properly. Okay.
At this point in time I don't see anything being done other than plans for ten years
from now, five years from, 15 years from now. We need parking now. The
other...that, that's really all I have to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Dan, for
being here this morning. What suggestions would you make as far as, real
quickly, on this parking issue? We have discussed this in the past and you have
brought up some suggestions. What suggestions would you have given us as far
as additional stalls right now?
MR. DAN: Valet parking for Market Street--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. DAN: --using private parking in the back. And people can have the valet parking
system. I've...that's one. Number two is, metered parking in parts of the larger
parking lot behind, the large parking lot...I don't know what you call that area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The municipal parking lot.
MR. DAN: The municipal parking lot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. DAN: Changing the hours in the municipal parking lot. One thing I have
discovered--and this was written in a report that came out in the WMSA a long
time ago--is the State and County workers use the municipal parking lots a lot.
The way I discovered that was really simple. When you guys have furlough
Fridays, there's plenty of parking.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(chuckled). . .
MR. DAN: When there's no furlough Friday there's no parking in the municipal lot. If
we reduce the hours of that municipal lot, the County workers will, and the State
workers will have to park elsewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Also we had mentioned something of, you
mentioned about something about satellite parking, picking up additional lots,
right?
MR. DAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, we, we'll keep working on this
situation. Thank you, Mr. Dan.
MR. DAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a comment. And thank you very much for coming. I
understand the frustration with things just seem to go on and on and on and never
get done, but I'm finding out as a Member of this Council, that it's tough to move
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anything. But I did want to tell you, you know, the, the people that are parking in
that parking lot and you don't see them on furlough Fridays, they probably aren't
County workers. We're not furloughed yet. That's in the new budget. So, it's
maybe State people.
MR. DAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MR. DAN: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. More questions, Members? Seeing none, thank
you, again for being here. Members, we have another testifier, C. Charldine J.
Apo. If you can come forward, provide your public testimony. Ms. Apo, you
have three minutes to provide your testimony. After two minutes the Analyst will
give you your cue, one minute to complete. If you can give us your name,
organization that you represent. Thank you.
MS. APO: Hi, good morning. I'm Charldine Apo, but everybody calls me Jojo. What
I'm here to talk about is the bus and increasing the bus fare. I want to tell you
how important it is that we have the bus. I used to be mobile. I could drive, I
could do what I want when I wanted it, and how I wanted to do it. But I can't do
that anymore because I'm, in about 20 something years, I'll be 100 years old. But
what I want to tell you is the bus is so important for us. The bus is, gets me where
I want to go. It gets me back home safely. The bus driver, drivers are so
courteous and, and professional and we can't get rid of the bus. It's really
important. That's what I'm here to tell you guys about. Keep the bus. In fact,
when you guys thinking about cutting things back, don't cut back on the senior
citizens. We worked hard all our life. We work, I worked for 30 years for the
community. I did an honest day's work for an honest day's pay. Don't do this to
us. We need it. We depend on it. It gets us to our medical appointments. It gets
us to our therapy. It gets us to our social affairs. As senior citizens, can you
imagine if you had your parents and you just left them at home? No, you want
them to get out. You want them to go and mingle with people of their own age.
You want them to go and, at least be socialized and communicate with people our
own age. That's so important. Don't get rid of our transportation. The
money-wise, you know, I know our County is in, needs the money, but don't pick
on us. Look to the younger people. Maybe all you guys can come in and
volunteer for free.
MS. REVEL: Two minutes.
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MS. APO: But don't pick on us senior citizens. We worked hard. We put food on our
table, we housed our children, we put them through school, we put them through
college, we put the Lord in their brain. So please, don't pick on the old people.
Look for something in the young people. That's all I have to say. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Straight forward, Ms...Ms. Apo. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Jojo, thank you, thank you so much for being here.
MS. APO: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and, and yes you've worked many years for
the County, and, and, and my two sons enjoyed your years of service at the
Wailuku Pool and the Wailuku Gym, so thank you so much for everything. Let
me say this, yeah, we are working on the budget right now, and the proposal came
from the Mayor. Mr. Pontanilla has said that many times at many of our
meetings. And now it's our turn after this, to look for means and what would you
say, Jojo, to something like this? If the seniors monthly, maybe had a, but get one
pass for like $5 a month. That way they can go anytime, anywhere they like, but
you, you know, and you still help augment a little. You think that would be a
possibility?
MS. APO: Yeah. In fact the bus driver had told us that they're going to have cards-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. APO: --that we can purchase as senior citizens.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. APO: But I think it was really expensive, something like--I don't know if it, I might
be wrong--$30 a month. That's impossible.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, no, we looking...
MS. APO: If you have a senior rating that's really good.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah, that's what we're looking at. And
again nothing in stone, and right now it's all talk. Right now we only discussing,
but something like that five, $10 a month for you folks.
MS. APO: Yeah, yeah, that's good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know it's youth and others. That's something
that we going discuss as the weeks go on. So just pay attention. But thank you
for all your services. And thank you for being here and getting us right. I agree
with you. Thank you, Jojo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Ms. Apo. Can
you tell us which bus system you, you're concerned with? Is it the MEO or the
County bus, the Maui Bus?
MS. APO: The MEO, the MEO.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The MEO.
MS. APO: This is what you folks are looking at. This is what you folks are trying to cut
back on. The MEO is so important and even the Maui Bus, even the Maui Bus.
When the MEO isn't going to take me any place, just from my house I walk
about, not even a block and I get the bus. The bus gets on, it takes me to
Kaahumanu Shopping Center. And I can go to Foodland. I can do my shopping.
You can carry bags on top of the bus. I mean this is really important. You know,
so please . . (inaudible). . . seriously.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And thanks so much, Jojo.
MS. APO: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm so, I love, I love what you said. You know, there's no
better way to tell the story than from people like yourself. You've been active all
your life like most of us, and when you reach that point where you cannot, you
know, that's what the MEO system is, it was started for, and that's what it's about.
I want to ask you a question.
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MS. APO: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What I'm hearing from you, and this is where I'm going,
is that if we were to leave the Maui Bus, doing what the Maui Bus does, and leave
MEO doing what MEO does, would that be okay?
MS. APO: You know, I would like that to happen. Because MEO is so important. MEO
is really good. And the Kaunoa, the Kaunoa system is very good too. I'd like to
keep two, but I don't know if it's in our budget. It's up to you guys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it's just a matter of shifting money around that they
would like to do. And if we leave it alone I don't think that it's going to cost us a
lot more. However, this situation with having to ask for some fares may be an
issue. And this Council will be, you know, looking at it very seriously. But we
have heard every corner of this County we went to, people came to tell us that
they're having a hard time and they cannot pay what has been suggested. And
I'm sure the Members will come up with something that makes sense. We don't
want to hurt our people, that's why we're here.
MS. APO: You know, some days I get bored and try stay home and don't have anything
to do. I go for a bus ride. I take the Kahului bus and I go around, you know. I
stop at Kaahumanu, and get on the Wailuku bus and I go around and go to
Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Terrific.
MS. APO: You know, something to do, and the bus is well used. I'm-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.
MS. APO: --the little kids, I see--ho!--the bus is filled, and it's good for the school kids.
I see a whole bunch all come on the bus, and a whole bunch, you drop 'em Happy
Valley, you drop 'ern up Wailuku, you know, you drop 'ern down Lihikai. You
know, it's really good. It's an important thing for our community, so please think
about it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And thank you, for coming.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Hi. Good morning, Jojo. You know just
a comment about, on days that you are bored you get on the bus. Do you know
that one of the comments made by the Director was that there are riders on the bus
that take up space. And on this free route which goes in Wailuku, Kahului, is that
the route you're referring to?
MS. APO: I go the Kahului route. The bus is always filled from 2 o'clock to 4 o'clock.
And it's full 4 o'clock. And I've been on the bus, this is when the people pau
work. And they get on the bus-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. APO: --and they go home.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think the, the point that the Director
was making is that by offering it free, riders are taking space on the, the free
route, which could be a revenue generating, and that's one of the reasons why
they're asking to now remove that free route and begin charging for that route,
because there are riders on the bus. I, I mean I'm just happy to hear that, that,
that's some of the things that you do, is that the bus is also a part of your, your,
perhaps recreation, you know. So, okay, but thank you for, for sharing that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. APO: I wish the bus would stop by one of the swim pools so I could get to the swim
pool.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Laughter). . .
MS. APO: There's no bus transfer to Kokua Pool or Salvation Army Pool, so I have to
find a private ride to go to the pool. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Kaimana Apo.
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MR. APO: Hello, hello. My name is Kaimana Apo. I agree with the bus. The bus is
really needed here, here on Maui. I agree still there needs to be, it's a budget
shortfall. You know, we cannot, it, it doesn't grow on, on trees. So, yeah, we got
to start charging but we cannot give 'em one full dollar right away. Let's be
sensible. Okay we start off 50 cents. You know, let's look at a timetable of nine
months. Fifty cents for six months. Get everybody, you know, as one phone call.
There's some of your laundry money. You know, you can make it one big load
laundry, you know. Okay, and then three months after the six months you do
75 cents. Okay. Bring it gradually rather than, you know, giving 'ern one time.
Slowly, slowly then it becomes more natural. You know, and then, yeah, the bus
pass would be alright for the kupunas. A little bit yeah. Not, not so heavy and
then, you know, everything a little, a little at a time. Because when I was small
you tell me no do something or you train a child to be what he wants to, what he
has to be, or how he needs to be. Just like we all humans we going train. If we
going hit 'ern or we going expect something that they cannot get we going have a
lot of people walking, a lot of people frustrated. We can slowly bring it in.
Implement that, then we got something coming in, rather than nothing coming in.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll take that advice real strongly. Members, any
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, the next testifier--thank you--is Roger
Thorson. Mr. Thorson, since you wasn't here prior to me making an
announcement you have three minutes to provide your testimony. Staff will let
you know when two minutes have gone by so that you have one more minute to
conclude your testimony. And if you can provide us with your name and
organization that you represent the Committee would appreciate that.
MR. THORSON: I don't represent anyone other than myself so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Laughter). . .
MR. THORSON: Aloha, my name is Roger Thorson. My wife and I operate a licensed
B&B. Thank you for the opportunity to speak to you on the subject of our
pending tax rate. I understand the proposed tax rate for commercialized
residential is 6.20 per 1,000. This will mean an increase in our tax bill of around
$11,000. Our B&B is a one-bedroom cottage of 400 square feet next to our
one-bedroom home. We limit the occupancy of our B&B to two guests because
of its small size. Unlike a TVR or even a B&B with multiple rooms to rent, I am
limited in the revenue I can expect to earn. My problem is the assessed value of
my home. Some might say that if you buy a $2 million property you are fortunate
and shouldn't complain. Well I didn't. I bought a narrow little piece of A&B
land that no one else wanted. It was thought to be too small to build a house.
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A&B tried to sell it for years, so I paid very little for it, solved all of the many
problems including no utilities by installing them myself. I've been a carpenter
builder for 40 years and I built my home as a labor of love. I used recycled beams
from the harbor and left over stone and materials from jobs I had worked on. We
love living in the house and have no thought of ever selling. We built the little
cottage with the idea it would a B&B to help put our kids through college. We
operated for years paying all our GE and TA taxes and shut down when informed
of the deadline to do so. We were the sixth applicants to apply for a license and
one of the first to be approved. So, we have played by the rules. Everything we
make goes to keep my son in medical school at UH. He has two years to go and it
has been tough getting the guests back after the shutdown. Visitors now expect to
pay about half what was once the going rate.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. THORSON: So now we are faced with a tax increase of $11,000 on our
one-bedroom B&B. I just don't see how anyone can think that it's fair. The
visitors we host spend a considerable amount of money per head per day here on
Maui. Many of our guests are here to get married and they spend much more per
head. If I am taxed out of business they will go, will they go to a hotel? If there's
one thing I have learned in this business it is that there are B&B people and there
are hotel people. I think I have one of the only B&Bs for couples on the ocean. If
I'm out of business the visitors will pick another B&B destination and Maui will
lose the revenue. There are only 50 B&Bs licensed in Maui County. There were
many more before the shutdown. Many of those not licensed are waiting to see
what you will do with this tax rate, especially those with higher assessed values. I
understand the Council is faced with nothing but tough decisions in this economy,
but taxing small businesses out of operation is not in my opinion the best strategy
for digging out of this recession.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. THORSON: My timing was pretty good there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and thank you very much for coming. You are then
support, are you supporting the recommendation from MVRA?
MR. THORSON: Even that would be tough, but it's better than six. I hear it's 3.12, so...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct. That, you know, we've had many testifiers come
and tell us their stories, just like yours. People that, you know, are going to go
from what they were paying to a very, very large increase in their taxes and
probably putting them out of business, 'cause there's no point in operating a
business if you can't make money.
MR. 'THORSON: True.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But we've also had that suggestion from the folks that
support the MVRA position, so I was wondering if you were aboard with that? I
think it's a compromise I understand that they would prefer something else.
MR. 'THORSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But they're trying to be reasonable and so are suggesting
that. Thank you so much.
MR. 'THORSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again for being here.
MR. 'THORSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, Mr. Thorson was the last person to sign up for public
testimony. Is there anyone that would like to provide public testimony that hasn't
signed up yet? Seeing none coming forward, Members, without any objections
the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27), CC 10-61, CC 10-68)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, this morning we do have the County Clerk's
Office. If you could turn to Page 2 on your proposed bill, Page 6-1, on your
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Program Budget, and 4-1 in your Program Detail. Again we do have the County
Clerk, Mr. Jeff Kuwada, along with Deputy County Clerk, Mr. Lance Taguchi.
They're here to present their 2011 Fiscal Year Budget. But at this time the Chair
would like to call on Mr. Kuwada for opening comments.
MR. KUWADA: Chairman Pontanilla, and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. I'd like to take the opportunity to introduce to you Deputy County
Clerk Lance Taguchi. You may recall Mr. Taguchi from the 2009 Budget Session
when he was several times referred to as Councilmember Taguchi.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
MR. KUWADA: In any event, I'll proceed. Thank you for the opportunity to present the
proposed 2011 Fiscal Year Budget, for the Office of the County Clerk. Pursuant
to the Charter, the Clerk's Office has two principal functions. The first is a
legislative function. The County Clerk serves as the Clerk of the Council. In this
capacity we receive legislative items for placement on Council meeting agendas
and prepare Council meeting agendas. After bills pass first reading we prepare
and publish digests of such bills and as required by the Charter. Following
passage of bills on second and final reading, we transmit bills to the Mayor for
execution. When bills are returned signed by the Mayor, we send electronic
copies of, of ordinances to our Code publisher for codification. And when
necessary we certify ordinances. Relative to our legislative function, the Clerk's
Office is also the repository of certain County records, for example, County
contracts, bills, resolutions, and ordinances. These are considered to be
permanent records that must be kept forever. Currently, the Legislative Division
has two full-time employees and we are currently recruiting to fill a third open
position.
The second principal function of the Clerk's Office is to conduct elections. We
conduct all County elections and assist the State with the conduct of State and
Federal elections. The Clerk's Office has a responsibility to maintain the general
County Register of registered voters. As of April 7, 2010, there were two, excuse
me, 83,284 registered voters in the County of Maui. In Fiscal Year 2009, we
processed 18,673 voter registration affidavits and in Fiscal Year 2008, we
processed 11,669. We processed 29,444 declinations in 2007, 25,897 in 2008,
and 30,695 declinations in 2009. For those of you who don't know what a
declination is, basically it's a form that people complete when they go to renew
their driver license at the driver license bureau. Every election year we recruit
719 volunteer election workers. We coordinate the delivery of ballots, election
equipment, supplies, and supplies to 39 polling places on Lanai, Molokai, and
Maui. In 2008, we processed absentee mail ballot requests and mailed
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6,396 absentee ballots in the Primary Election and 11,383 ballots in the General
Election. The Election Division has four full-time employees, and during an
election year we hire between 12 and 15 temporary Election Clerks.
I'll now address adjustments to our Fiscal Year 2011 Budget request. Before
making my remarks concerning adjustments to our Fiscal Year 2011 Budget
request, I want to inform you of two events over which we have no control that
may have an impact on our budget. The first event is, is a, a, is legislation
pending before the State Legislature. Currently there is a bill, House Bill 2397,
House Draft 1, Senate Draft 1. This measure if passed will change the date of the
Primary Election from the second-to-last Saturday in the month of September to
the second Saturday in the month of August. This measure is scheduled to go, to
go before a Conference Committee this afternoon at 2:15 pm. As a side note, if
the date of the Primary Election is moved to the second Saturday in August, the
candidate filing deadline will be the first Tuesday in June, and in 2010, that will
mean June 1 st, 2010. The second event that might affect our budget is a Special
Election to fill a Council vacancy. Presently our budget request for Fiscal Year
2011 does not include any request for money to operate a Special Election should
one become necessary. We estimate that a single Special Election will cost
approximately $250,000. I'll now proceed with adjustments to our request.
Starting with our A Account, we request that the Committee consider reducing our
A Account request by $64,065. The $64,065 figure is derived by eliminating the
improperly reflected step raises in the amount of $11,875. I did pass out a
handout to you if you take a look at the, at the, at Page 2 of the handout. And in
the column on the right side of the page entitled adjustments, you'll see where the
$11,875 is derived. Also, we have, we're requesting that you consider taking into,
into account a 4.6 salary...a 4.6 percent salary adjustment for a one day furlough.
The amount attributable to that is $22,151. We also request that you consider
eliminating three temporary Election Clerk positions, which will result in a
savings of $30,039. The total of those three figures is $64,065. Referring now to
our B Account adjustment, we, we, we request the Committee consider reducing
our B Account by $50,000. The $50,000 savings is derived by reducing the
amount of our request in subobject code 6132. If you turn to Page 5 of the
handout that we distributed you'll note under the adjustment column a $50,000
adjustment in subobject code 6132, Professional Services. Reducing the amount
of our request in subobject code, excuse me, the original amount requested was
$250,000. Money in subobject code 6132 is used to pay for the County's share of
the State Election System. Normally, we pay our share of the Election System
cost in two installment. ...(end of tape JA — 9:33 a.m.). . . State Office of
Elections successfully concluded a procurement of the election system we will
use in 2010, 2012, and 2014. The total cost of the procurement was 11 million, or
I should say is $11,500,000. We have sufficient money in our current fiscal year
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budget to pay our share of a 2010 election cost in a single payment, which we
intend to do before June 30, 2010. Our share for the 2010 Elections is $254,200.
The reduced Fiscal Year 2011 request of two, of $200,000, in subobject code
6132, will enable the Clerk's Office to initiate an imaging project which will
create a database of voter records and allow us to continue the microfilming of
voter registration affidavits which we are required to keep forever. I want to give
you a little further information concerning the imaging project and why we
believe it's necessary. We anticipate that there will be a shift in State law, which
will result in all-mail elections. Measures calling for all-mail elections have been
introduced in every Legislative Session since 2005. Presently, we perform
signature verification of all signatures on absentee mail ballot envelopes. This
assures that, this, that signature, signatures of registered voters on the outside of
the ballot envelope matches the signature of the registered voter in, on his or her
voter registration affidavit. In other words, we're just trying to reduce the
opportunity for voter fraud. Presently, signature verification is accomplished by
reviewing microfilm records on a single microfilm reader or by pulling the
original paper voter registration affidavit and doing a visual comparison. As you
can imagine, the current process is very, very cumbersome. The imaging project
envisions the creation of a database of digital images of signatures of registered
voters, for the purposes of verification. Election Staff will be able to retrieve
records at their work station computers. We need to start now so that we are
ready when it, when elections become all-mail elections. We estimate the initial
cost to be $160,000.
Lastly, I want to draw your attention to notable increases in our Fiscal Year 2011
request. Please note that we have made a request for $55,000 in premium pay.
The magnitude of the request is attributable to our uncertainty concerning the date
of the Primary Election. If the Primary Election is moved to August, I anticipate
that we will have fewer regular work hours to complete all the work that must be
done to conduct the Primary Election. This will require work to be completed
after regular hours. And this concludes my remarks. I'm happy to respond to any
questions you may have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that overview. So, in regards to that
one area that you mentioned, in regards to the change of the Primary Election
date, your estimation in regards to the finalization by the State Legislature is
tonight?
MR. KUWADA: That, that's what we, that's what's been posted on the State Legislature
web site, in a, in a link to this particular bill. There is a Conference Committee
scheduled this afternoon at 2:15 pm.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. On that Special Election, on this changing of this date, I,
I, I know you don't have the cost for the, you know, how much it's going to cost
the State of Hawaii to implement this thing. Do you have that number?
MR. KUWADA: No, no I don't.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, we don't get any monies from the State to conduct that?
MR. KUWADA: No, in fact State law provides that voting or elections that are
conducted by mail, it, it is a solely a County cost under the current provisions of
State law.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I hope they taking a look at that because it's going
to cost the counties, four counties a lot of money just for changing the date of the
election. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and thank you, Mr. Kuwada. And
again congratulations to both of you, I know this is different positions for both of
you this year. And we going to, we miss Mr. Taguchi, over there as a member,
you know, thank you. Question I had, when you go to this all-mail, then that
would eliminate all walk-in then? Because we have walk-in right now, right?
MR. KUWADA: That's correct. We will, we will have to have, maintain a, a walk-in
voting polling place for those individuals who are unable to vote by mail.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KUWADA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so we still have the walk-in facility.
MR. KUWADA: Right, but it will be for a reduced period of time. Currently, State law
requires us to hold walk, walk-in voting for a period of ten days prior to the
Primary Election, and primary, prior to the General Election.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would that change, I mean, I understand the
Special Election, but would that change, if you talking regular election? Or that
would change all around as far as the ten days?
MR. KUWADA: I, I, I would believe that if the State moves to an all-mail election the
ten-day requirement will probably be, be reduced. But we will have to provide
individuals who are unable to vote by mail the opportunity to vote in person--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. KUWADA: --at a, at a walk-in polling place. And that polling place may be at
single locations on the islands of Maui, Molokai, and Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I guess the last question I have and I'll let my
other colleagues have an opportunity. You know this premium pay you were
asking for, if you were to have some certainty today or in the next week or two or
whatever as far as if, if we have the Special Election or not, I mean the change in
election--excuse me, correction--the change in the election date, if we don't then
you probably won't need the, the premium pay, more or less?
MR. KUWADA That's true, but I'd like to draw your attention to the handout that I gave
you. On page, on Page 2, if you take a look at the corresponding period that is
Fiscal Year 2009-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. KUWADA: --and this is an amount that was actually expended. The premium pay
that we expended in 2009, and this was a regular election. Okay. This is when
the, the election date for the primaries in September. We actually expended
$45,280. So, the increase of $55,000, is, is only a $10,000, increase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In other words, minimum. And, and, you're—
MR. KUWADA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --looking at, that's really the only change-MR. KUWADA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that 10,000. Okay.
MR. KUWADA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much, and, Chair, I'll, allow others
to ask questions. Thank you, Mr. Kuwada.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, and he has a shorter period in trying to get the
primary going. So, Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just a question on, on your comments,
Jeffrey, about preserving all of the documents. And that's one of the
responsibilities of the Clerk's Office. And earlier I had in the other departments
asked about when, when we pass out subdivision approvals and all of the required
conditions of those approvals, then they would be recorded and, because they're
legally signed off, there are Bureau of Conveyance that verify those documents.
They're filed then with the Clerk's Office?
MR. KUWADA: We...the Clerk's Office maintains a permanent record of ordinances-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And the...
MR. KUWADA: --that are passed.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, when we're passing an ordinance that
includes those, then it would be, you know, because my question was of the
Department of, of Planning then, was, when we want to retrieve that information
because there are obligations to, in the document, do they keep a copy of it? And
they said they don't. And then I asked the same question of the Corporation
Counsel, and their response was that they sign off on the documents, but they do
not keep track or records of it. So it would be the Clerk's Department, then that it
would be, the one that we would go to?
MR. KUWADA: That's correct. Now to the extent that we, we will have the original
ordinance in our files. But, with...and I just want to make this clear, with respect
to assuring that the conditions are being met, we have nothing to do with that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And then I'm, I'm kind of finding
out that neither does the departments, neither does legal, and so it's sort of left in
space. And then when we want to try and track that, that, that was my, my
question. How do we, how do we track that? The response was that, it was not
their responsibility to do so. It's just curious because in some of those cases these
are conditions of liability for of, of payments and funds to be collected by the
County of Maui. And we don't, we don't track that. So, in, you know, in what
you just described now in moving the vote on, on the voters' side, you're going to
be putting in place equipment that will help you to digitize and have good
equipment that will track voters so that signatures are going to be part of what you
want to up, update, and then that would make it available at your clerks, whatever,
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your terminals there. Is there a system that will help us to keep track of some of
those kinds of conditions that you're responsible for, for filing forever and ever,
you know, so that we can be, so that they can also be easily retrieved when we
need to, to track that?
MR. KUWADA: I, I would imagine that there, there are systems that exist that would
enable us to create a digital record of, of all ordinances. I'm not sure that I
completely understand your question, but if, if, and there would be ways to
cross-reference this database so that individuals could retrieve the specific
document that they, they are searching for. I would imagine that there are
systems that exist that would accomplish that, but in so far as what they would
cost or whether we would embark on something like that, we, we currently have
no plans to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You know, I, I, I think it's an
important area for us to have that availability and that, that, that data, because
when trying to do that kind of work in finding out how much is perhaps owed to
the County of Maui, in terms of these agreements that are in ordinances if they're
simply filed and they, you, you have record of them there's no way to, to connect
that, that information. If I could push a button and say, all liabilities to County,
push. You know, and then your data would, would extract that information so that
it makes sense to, to this Council or this body when they're trying to, to
understand what are the liabilities that are due for laws and ordinances that we
pass. You know, so do you think that is an important area of, of, of, of perhaps
work that should be explored by the Clerk?
MR. KUWADA: I, I, Mr. Chairman, I will respond in this way. You know, part of me is
leaning toward the direction of, you know, that really isn't a function of the Office
of the County Clerk. The, the word clerk implies a, duties that are more in the
manner of clerical or ministerial duties. And what you're suggesting is perhaps
more in the area if, of enforcement. And enforcement duties would primarily be
carried out, or functions would be carried out by executive branch departments.
And I'm, and I'm giving you this response off the top of my head. I'm, I'd, I'd
have to give this some thought. But I'm not certain that, with the personnel we
have currently, in the Clerk's Office and the functions that we are engaged in, that
we would be able to conduct the type of, or manage the type of scheme that
you're, you're presenting.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I'm just trying to pin, pinpoint
where that responsibility, because the Department's saying it's not their job.
MR. KUWADA: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Corporation Counsel is saying, it's not
their job. And then you say that you have the responsibility to keep them forever
and ever.
MR. KUWADA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, so I'm trying to look, where then do
we go to find and hone in on information that is passed, you know, so. Okay.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Somebody gotta keep records and you need to find
out, so whenever you can, Jeff If you can provide something to us in regards to
the question that Mr. Kaho'ohalahala is asking. And, and maybe for
Administration, you know, speak with the various departments in regards to
recordkeeping on agreements like that. Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Well let me just, welcome,
Mr. Kuwada. And I just want to say right off the top, you have a lot on your plate
already as it is. I mean granted somebody else, somebody needs to do the
responsibility that was mentioned earlier, but I don't know if at this point in time
with this Department already facing the many challenges in an election year, and
more and more responsibilities dumped off by the State to us. So, I just want to
say that, you, you got far and plenty enough on your plate as it is. So, with the
date changes, the request for premium pay, obviously that's something, you know,
we gotta certainly look at and consider on your behalf. And it's in my opinion,
this is, you know, the proposed reduction seemed quite deep, but, you know, I
trust that, you know, you and your Department can still manage the challenges
that are being given to you in this election year. So, I don't envy you, but I
certainly appreciate the work that you guys are going to do. And, you know,
hopefully with the, I don't know, it would be nice if the State would just keep the
current date, but it, it seems at this point, from your assessment, Mr. Kuwada, it
appears inevitable that we're looking at moving up the Primary Election date as
well as the filing date?
MR. KUWADA: I believe, I believe that's going to happen. And it's just a question of
whether or not it'll be in 2010 or 2012. There is a, the, the State is up against a
Federal law, okay, which requires that overseas voters be sent ballots by a certain
deadline. And because of the current September, Primary Election date the State
is out of compliance with the Federal law. And therefore, and, and I have to be, I
want to give you a little bit of background. The, the, the State Office of Elections,
and, and the County Clerks, have historically gone to the Legislature and pushed
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for the Primary Election date to be moved to August, because we were having
difficulty mailing out ballots to overseas voters. We just don't have enough time.
When the, when the Primary Election is in September, you know, if you take into
account the, the contest period, as well as the period it takes to print the ballots for
the General Election and, and so on well, I mean we're, we cut it really close.
And, and I'm certain that there are instances...I don't know personally of any
instances, but I'm certain that they, they exist, where voters overseas have
received their ballots late just because it takes time for the ballot to catch up with
them. Because we mailed it to one location in our records and if they are in the
military they may have moved. Alright so, it, it takes time for that ballot to catch
up with them wherever they are. So the, the move of the Primary Election date to
August, I think will be a good thing. It's just a matter of whether it happens this
year, which will make it difficult for us, or in 2012 where, well we know what,
what we're in for in 2012. And we'll have time to, to do the planning necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. That, that's the key. At least it gives you more
time if it's 2012; hopefully, that is the direction if the dates are changed, just go
with 2012. In terms of polling sites for this upcoming election, if the change is
made to, made is this year, the amount of polling sites how does this affect them?
MR. KUWADA: The, the number of polling places is, will, will change. And this is a
comparison between 2008 and 2010. The State has, under State law, the, the State
of Hawaii, the Office of Elections, has a responsibility to secure polling places.
And due to several factors Maui County's...has lost three polling places. Three
polling places are located, one in Ulupalakua Ranch, the second it will be Kahului
Hongwanji, and the third is Kaulanapueo Church. And all three of those locations
presented accessibility problems. There were obstacles to accessibility. And
where it, it may inconvenience some, some people who live there. In general, the
number of voters inconvenienced is relatively small. And I, I don't mean to
minimize this. I know that for voters who have to now drive another five miles
out of their way or more it will be an inconvenience. However the, it was
determined that the, the obstacles to accessibility pose such a, a problem that it
was better to move, or close those, those polling places.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And my fmal question, as it relates to
performance measures on 6-4 Volunteers Recruited, you anticipate any--I know
you're, you're projecting 575 additional volunteers to be recruited for this year-any difficulties? I know you have to, you're basically you, you feed your
volunteers and what not whether it be for the training session or for the elections
that day. Can you comment on that? Any challenges you see there?
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MR. KUWADA: You know, in, in 2010, is we're, we're, we have yet to, we had done
some of the recruiting for 2010. I'll speak about 2008. In 2008, we did very well
with our recruiting. And it was, we were probably more fully staffed in 2008,
than any prior election. I came into the office as a Deputy Clerk in 2004, and, you
know, we, we at, in 2004, we seemed to be at a time of higher employment. And
we had noticed that in times of less employment, people, there are more people to
draw from. And so, that, that's what we've been experiencing. If, if 2010, is any,
if the, the pattern is any indication, we think we'll do pretty well this year, 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Mr., Mr. Clerk. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kuwada. Chair would like to recognize the
presence of Member Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and Member Kaho'ohalahala. Aloha. And Chair failed to
mention that Members Medeiros and Mateo are excused this morning. Members,
we just touched base on part of Mr. Kuwada's overview. Members, we're on 4-2,
the A Account. And Chair has a question regarding your vacant position. And I
understand that there was a step movement, not step movement, a promotion in
your office. And can you identify the vacant position and where the incumbent
had gone to.
MR. KUWADA: Currently the, the vacant position is position CL-0005, Assistant Clerk
to the Council. The incumbent, the, the previous incumbent moved to the position
CL-0003, Clerk to the Council. So we have a vacancy, in the, in the Assistant
Clerk to the Council. For your information the position has been posted. And we
are actively recruiting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question. How important is that position in the office?
MR. KUWADA: It is very important.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Duties?
MR. KUWADA: Excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The duties of that particular position.
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MR. KUWADA: The, the Clerk to the Council and Assistant Clerk to the Council are the
people who do the, who do the, the work on the ground to assure that Council
agendas are prepared and published. Basically they, they do all the heavy lifting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Nishiki, questions under A?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, no question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina? Okay. Thank you. Go down to elections,
that will be on page, the bottom of 4-2 and 4-3. These are all temporary Election
Clerks. You see big numbers because of an election year.
MR. KUWADA: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, this just reflects, Jeff, that you're
going to add three more than in this upcoming year?
MR. KUWADA: No, we are requesting that you consider eliminating three positions.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're eliminating the three?
MR. KUWADA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The adjustments.
MR. KUWADA: Yeah, it is in, in handout in page, on Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Then no questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jeff, fast question. Is, is this because of the shutdown of some
precincts?
MR. KUWADA: Yes, it is. We, we will not operate the absentee, the absentee walk
polling place in Lahaina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Okay, Members, Page 4-9, 4-4, the B
Account. Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He made a pretty good explanation. No, no
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Kuwada, Mr. Taguchi, you don't have any
equipment purchases, right?
MR. KUWADA: No, we, we do, we don't have any big, any equipment purchases
planned.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine, thank you. Okay. Members, that concludes the
review for the County Clerk's Office. If you do have any questions, I, you can
forward it to the Chairman and we'll get information back from the County
Clerk's Office. So, thank you, Mr. Kuwada. Thank you, Mr. Taguchi, for being
here this morning.
MR. KUWADA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, just, can I have one more
question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: 'Cause I just want to peruse this, this
earlier conversation. Is the information that you have a responsibility for keeping,
is that digitized? The documents that are ordinances that you are keeping
. . .(inaudible). . .

MR. KUWADA: No, they, they are not. Right now we, we have the online County
Code. And of course we have the hard copy, paper edition. But we, we do not
have any, any of our permanent record digitized and in house.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is that something that we should consider
looking at?
MR. KUWADA: Yes. I think that it is something that we, we have to look at primarily
from the standpoint that...right now our paper records reside in two storage rooms
on the seventh floor. And, you know, I, from time to time I have sleepless nights
because those records are paper records in metal filing cabinets. And although
the, the rooms are secure at night because doors are locked, they are not safe from
the things such as fire and water damage and so on. And we are informed that the
ninth floor now has a sprinkler system. If that sprinkler system is ever activated,
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we anticipate damage to our records on the seventh floor. The, the room is, the
rooms are not watertight.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, then Chair can I ask the, the
Clerk's Office then if you had to consider then looking at other ways of creating
digital records and, and saving and to secure that could you provide some kind of,
of proposed plan or cost that would be involved?
MR. KUWADA: Yeah, and I, I want to correct, correct myself because I had misspoke.
I, I did forget about our Laserfiche system. And we do have ordinances,
resolutions, and Committee reports on Laserfiche. However, we're working
forward and we have a number of documents that we have to put on, working
back, backwards. So, just to let you know.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair. Sorry. Just one...yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I recognize Member Molina, I was informed by
Ms. Revels, that we do have it on Laserfiche. But we don't know the extent of
how many. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sorry to delay things. Just to follow up
Mr. Kaho' ohalahala's questioning, and Mr. Kuwada's response, with regards to
the sprinkler system. You said the ninth floor just had a sprinkler system put in?
MR. KUWADA: That's, that's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Have they ever consult with you and your concern with
regards to the records whether it be the ninth floor or the Fire Department?
MR. KUWADA: No, in fact it was, I, I found out about it really in, in a, in a passing
conversation. There was some construction going out . . . (end of tape 1B — 10:05
a.m.). . . and I thought they were just, I, I wasn't certain what kind of work was
being done, but I happened to ask someone I know, and, and they said, oh, they're
bringing in a larger waterline to supply a, a fire suppression system on the ninth
floor. And, and that got my attention because I said, oh my God, the paper
records, so...
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So much for communication, you know, but I don't
know maybe we, to protect our eighth floor then well maybe we should have the
cost taken from, I don't know, somewhere else but us. Anyway you catch my
drift, Mr. Chair, yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. You know, last year we discussed about, because we
knew what was happening on the ninth floor, we discussed it in the, part of our
CIP review in regards to the total building being fireproof, not fireproof, but have
some kind of means to put in sprinklers for, in case we do have fires. I, I have a
fast question, Mr. Kuwada, in regards to your rentals, document storage. You
have a storage location?
MR. KUWADA: I'm sorry?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One of your items here, rentals, document storage.
MR. KUWADA: Yes. We, we do have offsite document storage and the, the reason
being that we have just run out of space on the seventh floor. And it, and it is, and
it is necessary that we keep these documents for, many of them forever. So we
had to secure space outside. What precipitated this is you may recall they, the, the
old Federal Post Office, we had storage in there of many of our documents, and
basically we were told that we have to remove them, and we did. And we had no
place to put them, and, and, and I'm not saying that this is special to the
legislative branch, but many executive branch departments were in the same fix.
Then they had, all of us had to immediately secure offsite storage space.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Fast question for Mr. Pablo. In regards to a
proposal that is being considered by this County to house our Civil Defense, and
some of our, well most of our important records in Waikapu, I don't know if the
design also, you know, if it's not, if it could be included that some of the
important records that we keep in the, on the seventh floor, be made available,
some storage space made, made available at the Waikapu site when, on that
emergency building. So, if you can follow up on that.
MR. PABLO: Certainly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, if I might also comment-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
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MR. KUWADA: --concerning that. I am aware, I have not seen the facility, but I am
aware that the City and County of Honolulu has a secure facility with the, that,
that is not only secure, that is restricted access, but also environmentally secure
and, if it, and if it is like the State Archives there is certain portions of the State
Archives that have a fire suppression system that is, you know, I believe it's
hyaline gas as opposed to a water system.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Hyaline is something that the phone company use.
MR. KUWADA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members...Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just one more question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then you said that you're required to
keep the hard paper copy then forever and ever.
MR. KUWADA: Certain, of certain records, yes. The, and I'll give you an example of
records that hard paper records that we do not keep. You know, until I got here in
2004, we were keeping all of our voter registration affidavits, the paper affidavit
for years and years and years. And then we embarked upon a microfilming
project which basically we reduced all of those paper records to microfilm, and
then we shredded the paper records in order to make room.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then are the documents archival,
paper to begin with?
MR. KUWADA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: How, how do you keep them then forever
and ever?
MR. KUWADA: In file cabinets, in metal file cabinets, in, in, you know, the, the normal
file folders.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But the nature of those materials
themselves are, are, degrade in, in storage so, do you move it from that into
archival paper in itself so that those that need to be kept are archived properly and
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are printed on archival paper using archival ink so that longevity of the documents
are secured?
MR. KUWADA: I, I understand, but we have not embarked upon that as yet.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, that should be something else that we
should take a look at then if that's the, one of your responsibilities then. Okay.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Jeff, Lance, thank you for being here.
MR. KUWADA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before we go to Council Services, I, I know Ken is
sitting real patiently there. We'll take our mid-morning recess and we'll come
back at about 10:30, so this meeting is in recess till 10:30. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:11 a.m
10:32 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now back in session. This morning we do have from Council Services, Director
Ken Fukuoka. And Members, if you can turn to Page 2 of your proposed bill, and
Page 5-1 on your Program Budget, and starting on Page 3-1 on your Details.
Again, we're going to be reviewing the budget for Fiscal Year 2011 of the Office
of Council Services. At this time, the Chair would like to call on Mr. Fukuoka for
some comments and overview. Mr. Fukuoka.
MR. FUKUOKA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, sorry. Thank you, Mr. Chair Good morning,
Chair and Members. I'm Ken Fukuoka, Director of the Office of Council
Services. You should have before you a memo of my proposed changes that was
issued yesterday, I think, although it was dated the day before. You should also
have the worksheets for this budget, which, you know, are substantially the same
as what you folks were given last year somewhere I think it was in, in October or
so but there have been modifications. But the current ones were distributed
recently, and there was an item or there is an item pending in Budget Committee
on the position change that we're proposing and that was doc trans into this
Committee earlier this month, I think The overall account structure, if you look
at the budget, let me run through that, there's in the Office of Council Services'
budget a lot more than just the Office of Council Services. There are four basic
accounts. One is called the Office of Council Services, but that covers four areas:
the Office of Council Services' operations; the district offices; the
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intergovernmental and travel, which is primarily for the Members; and the
Council Members' salaries and miscellaneous expenses. All of that is within that
one account, that's 901041, called the Office of Council Services. There's also
another account called Other Legislative Programs. This is the place where you
have the audits, the financial audits, the program audits, professional services
such as Special Counsel. There's a, there's an amount there for adjustments,
contingencies, for salaries, et cetera, I think relatively small amount this year.
The third major area is the Council Chair Contingency Account. Those are
primarily for ceremonial things. It's necessary to set those off separately because
strictly speaking I suppose people could argue that they're not technically
necessary in the legal sense. And so there is an amount that's set out as, as a
contingency for legal reasons. And then there's the collection of the Council
Member individual accounts, and that, that's where you have nine, basically nine
sets of accounts that deal with the Council Members' priorities individually. The,
the changes, well, let me back up. By and large this is a continuation of the past
operations. We, we, we try to economize regardless of the economic conditions.
There was an effort this year, however, which is kind of unusual because of the
very severe economic cycle effect to reduce expenditures to at least a flat level.
Now, at this point, having seen what the Administration is coming out, in terms of
furloughs, you know, there are some other adjustments that we're making. And
those are in that memo that we, we distributed a day ago. The first one has to do
with the furloughs. We, we, we hope that it's going to be possible to limit the
furlough to 12 days a year. And if that's the case, then our intent is to follow suit.
It's subject to, you know, direction from the Council Chair and the preferences of
the Members, but the general intent is to treat it as an unpaid leave that we would
arrange for in staggered format similar to the way vacation or sick leave is taken.
There is a vacant position and we're deleting funding or we're proposing that it be
deleted. This is the vacant position that was where the incumbent went over to
become the Deputy County Clerk. And then there's a position reclassification for
the three positions in the Administrative Support Section. That reclassification
will cost about $4,000, in the first year. The thrust of that is to turn it into a
professional class that will coordinate and be able to do research analysis,
primarily in areas like personnel, fiscal purchasing. Things are just getting more
and more complicated when we talk about the regulations that apply to
employment type arrangements. And that's pretty much it. I'm open to
questions. I probably don't have all the answers, but as in the past, any questions
that you have that I can't answer I'll be submitting it to you in writing so that it's
clear and everybody and the staff can check me before it's issued.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Fukuoka. I got a question. You know the
Budget Details that we got it shows all the positions, yeah, for your Department. I
know you gave us a real comprehensive report of your Department. And on that
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Legislative Analyst position that you are contemplating of...that was Lance
Taguchi's old position?
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the position number, would you know?
MR. FUKUOKA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is it OC-0020 [sic].
MR. FUKUOKA: Right. It's, it's the most expensive one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then the rest of them you applied that 4.6 percent
furlough adjustments, yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right, 4.6.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Members, it's not reflected on what you have in
your Budget Details, but, but Mr. Fukuoka just explained to us it, it's reflected on
the sheet that was provided to us this morning. Mr. Victorino... questions on the A
Account?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I guess, you, you know, it's pretty clear here,
and thank you, Ken, for being proactive in, in that respect. No, no questions at
this time, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Ken, how do you see the function of our three
attorneys? I gotta bring it up with you because I brought it up with Corporation
Counsel and just kind of getting nowhere.
MR. FUKUOKA: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah, the three attorneys are there to give us the ability to do basically
reviews. They bring their skills to the job and they help the, the section and I
guess to some degree the rest of the office in their, in their functions. They're
able to provide some legal, or they, they can apply their learning and they can
analyze the degree to which further help is needed. They don't actually take on
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any task of representation in court, in litigation. And from the very beginning
from the day I was hired, and I was the only one, it, it, it's pretty clear that
litigation has become more and more complicated and the consequences of, of
mistakes are greater and greater. And for us to staff up for litigation, I think is, is
going to be expensive. In addition, you know, there are going to be differences of
opinion in the legal sense between any two lawyers. I mean within our office
there sometimes are disagreements. I'm sure the same within the Department of
the Corporation Counsel. The only way you can get certainty is by going to court.
It's an expensive process to make decisions in that way. And so the question
really is, you know, if you have a certain amount of manpower and you're able to
devote that resource to something, is this more important than other things, you
know, that the people could be using it for?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah and that's, that, that, that's I guess, a call on us as
Council Members. I'm just asking you about how we've got, Mr. Chairman,
three, I think, top notch attorneys, you know, and I think that they're being
muffled almost. You know, and I want to, I want to use them. You know, and,
and that's why the question, Ken. I, I, you know-MR. FUKUOKA: I think...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you talk about litigation. I'm not talking about
litigation, okay. Corporation Counsel has deals and they've got certain attorneys
dealing with litigation. I'm not talking about this. I'm talking about them
actually coming to the Council meetings, and me asking them legal questions,
because they're here and they've studied and, and, and have created ordinances
almost, for us. They've become the experts, Mr. Chairman, and that's who we
really rely upon. And I, I want to be able to use them more for to get legal
opinions when we need to. That's my, that's my concern that they're being
muffled.
MR. FUKUOKA: Muffled?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
MR. FUKUOKA: How, how so...the fact that they defer to the fact that the Charter calls
the Corporation Counsel the chief legal advisor?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
MR. FUKUOKA: They, they do, they do indicate their opinion, but they are always
careful--they ought to be careful, if they're not--to indicate that the Corporation
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Counsel is the one that makes the final advice. You're entitled to ask them, and
they're entitled to say what they think. You're entitled to look at people outside, I
mean your friends who are attorneys. But that doesn't mean that it's, it's a good
idea necessarily in terms of the allocation of resources to take what they would
have done and not do it, and then use it, use that time to contest opinions of law.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah my, my question, Ken, is to use our attorneys
when we have Committee circumstances, Committee meetings and, and, and get
from them legal answers whenever we need to.
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, you're entitled to ask and the Council is entitled to decide that
that's what ought to be done. And I would do so, I mean I, I would allow it to
happen if, if the Chair told me that it was okay, but let's be clear about it. To the
degree that they're spending time researching to the point where they can issue a
legal opinion, to that extent other work is not going to get done. And it's not as if
there's a heck of a lot of time for us to do other things, currently.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anyway, I just feel personally that these attorneys that
we have are well qualified. They, they, they know the issues and I'd like to use
them. And I don't think that you're saying we don't have to or not. I, I, I don't
think you're saying do not use them. What I hear you saying, however, is they're
too busy.
MR. FUKUOKA: They're, they're...right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know.
MR. FUKUOKA: It's, it's a matter of . . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For me, for me, Mr. Chairman, to have that help as a
person in the legislative branch and, and, and using them for these reasons, I
think, you know, to get opinions I think is really important. I mean why do we
have them, Ken? You know I think, I think I want them to really show their stuff,
because I think we've got good attorneys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, I'm going to stop this debate right now, because it,
it's not for this Budget and Finance Committee to decide that. Maybe we can
have a Council meeting that we can discuss this kind of matter. We utilize them
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as much as possible. We ask them for advice. They provide, well they provide
me some advice as we conduct our meetings, so, you know, it's not to say that
they're not helping us. They do help, help us, and I've witnessed it, witnessed the
help in our deliberation on, on this particular budget. So, I'm going to move on.
Mr. Nishiki, if you have any other questions for Mr. Fukuoka, please ask them
now. Otherwise I want to move to Members Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess, I guess this is how I, I see sometimes the, the
concern that I have, Mr. Chairman. The Corporation Counsel gives advice say to
the Planning Department, okay and they come in here and, and so if it's a zoning
circumstance or whatever. The Corporation Counsel is giving that advice say
from the Planning Commission level to the Planning Department and then it goes
through and then they come to the Council for a project or a rezoning. The, the,
the Corporation Counsel is already, has to agree with the Planning Department
and, and, and so support that, because that's where they're giving their, their legal
advice to. When it comes to the Council we may not totally agree with that, you
know. And, and, and so therefore we may need to get, well I do get opinions
from our legal staff. You know at that point, I think is where I see the conflicts
with Corporation Counsel and, and, and for me in drafting this legislation, I feel
that we, we should use our legal attorneys to ask questions and, and, and draft it
accordingly. That's where I see the conflict.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I don't want to have this argument with
Mr. Fukuoka.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, it's a discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, I think that it is-CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --our body that should be able to at least-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --guide him into asking him, hey, you know we need
help.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And we want our attorneys to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --to move.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's not an argument.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's just a matter of a debate and, and, and that debate is, you
know, can be taken to another level, not, not with the Budget and Finance
Committee. You know, we have all the opportunities not to agree whatever is
presented to us by any department. We can disagree. We can turn it down. We
can ask our Legal Analysts for their comments in regards to the matter at hand.
And, and, and, you know, we can defer a decision until we get and we're
comfortable in what we do. So, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I, I, I guess, I guess this is what, this is what
occurs, okay, and, and, and this is what concerns me. A lot of times Corporation
Counsel will huddle with our legal attorneys. Okay. And I don't think that our
legal attorneys, despite that they may disagree, I think they, I think they many
times kowtow because it's the Corporation Counsel. And that's where I just feel
like it's wrong.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I just want to at least echo Member
Nishiki's request, and, and we are in a budget, you know, deliberations for
personnel so if that's something that we should consider aside from what we
currently have in terms of function that would be, I think, worth another meeting
for discussion. But in terms of positions, you know, we do have them. My
questions, Ken, have to go to your summary document 5-3. And I, I just wanted
to ask about the performance measures.
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh. The...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: In the narrative.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Program Budget.
MR. FUKUOKA: Program Budget. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm looking down about half way down
the page and you have a number of information requests requiring research or
retrieval of records. And you're proposing an, a decrease in that. Can you
explain that?
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh, you know, I'm not, we are projecting a, a reduction based on the
patterns as, as they seem to be happening. It, it's not we're proposing to do it.
You know research requests, I mean retrieval of records requests just come to the,
to us. We have to deal with them when they do come. And it's not as if we're,
we're able to affect a number. This is...it's just a best estimate of what we think
we're going to end up getting.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So it's not based on any kind of
workload then, in this performance. You're not looking at reducing the number of
tasks?
MR. FUKUOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're just saying that this is the, the
numbers that come in normally.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: In terms of your...
MR. FUKUOKA: It's not like we're targeting an increase or a decrease. It's not. It's
not as if we are initiating actions in order to, to achieve a goal. It's, it's the
workload we expect. Or it's our estimate of the workload we expect.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, so this isn't tied to any kind of
objective or goal then?
MR. FUKUOKA: Not of the sort that I think you're talking about. This is a measure of
work that is tied to the objective of serving the public and, and other agencies in
producing the records that they need when they come and ask for that.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the, the 770 amount,
what does, is that just a guess as well then or an estimate?
MR. FUKUOKA: That has been the guess which was higher than we are experiencing.
And that's the reason why we're reducing it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the next item is the
number of research assignments received. You have a, a reduction there.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right. We didn't, you know, after you, after we minus out legislative
testimonies, et cetera, we, we don't have the number that we thought we would be
getting.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Again these are just statistics then,
these aren't...
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: They're not tied to, to goals and
objectives so that performance measures, to me, say that there's an objective and
a, and a, and a goal here, and I would weigh them against how it can measure the
performances, so. But right now you're just giving us statistics then in this.
MR. FUKUOKA: That's right. And in our business, so to speak, we, we react to
demand. We don't try to shape the demand for service.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then that's, that's all the
question, cause I, I was trying to understand whether or not that meant that the
workload should be reduced to achieve some other king of efficiency and has
nothing to do with that then. Okay. So you have whole bunch of performance
measures here. So, are these just a bunch of statistics for us to look at then?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah. Our agency is not an agency that is able to initiate the delivery
of services. It's not as if, you know, we're targeting paving a certain amount of
road.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But, Ken, in your objectives you said...
MR. FUKUOKA: We react... sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. In your objectives though you say,
that your office system support are, are performed efficiently and in accordance
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with procedural requirements. So you have some efficiencies that you're talking
about here. And that's what I was trying to find out if these were related to those
objectives.
MR. FUKUOKA: No. If what you're asking is, are these measures capable of being
used in a, in relation to the cost of providing this service . . .(end of tape 2A —
10:58 a.m.). . . such that we can try to reduce the cost over time and the answer is
no, we are not able to identify time the cost of performing these outputs.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I appreciate the explanation.
Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Go to the B Account, and I think
Mr. Fukuoka gave us a pretty comprehensive report on your handouts. So, we'll
go, we'll go with the Council Services first. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No, questions, I mean they've done a good job
reducing it so, no, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next area is other legislative programs.
Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We go to the Chair's contingency area. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 15, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'll, I'll pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got a question, what was the cause for the increase? Oh, it
does say here from Fiscal '10 to Fiscal '11?
MR. FUKUOKA: Mr. Chair, yeah. This is...this happens every other year because the
inauguration expenses are built into this oncoming budget year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Council Members' individual accounts.
Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I gotta ask the tough question. In, in regards to the Members'
account, Mr. Fukuoka, who is responsible for that account?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, the, there's, there's reviews that are done by the Chair, and at
the Chair's request, by our office just to make sure that there aren't any
inadvertent, you know, expenses, that, that, are not permitted. But primarily these
are at the, at the Members' discretion. And it's necessary in order to make sure
that the Members have a way to satisfy or to pursue their individual legislative
priorities, for example, if, if research needs to be done and the central offices
cannot do it quickly enough then Member's staff can help. In addition, there are
constituent requests that come in that tend to be handled as an individual Member,
and those, those are handled through the staff, which are funded by, by this, this
account that every Member has. It's important to keep the accounts equal which
is why it gets difficult to...everybody spends their money differently for their own
priorities. And so it's, it's difficult to manage it any more than in, in a very...I
don't know what the word I'm looking for...in, in, in other than in terms of the
overall amount. It's hard to manage it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In your opinion then, would it be, each individual Member,
because we're looking at, you know, furlough days and the like for every single
department, how do we determine? Or is it individual Members that determine
for themselves in regards to their accounts to achieve 4.6 percent reduction?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, the Members would have to deal with the expenditure of
whatever is provided for in, in the accounts. I guess the, the more difficult
problem is what do you do at this point, you know, while you're setting up the
amount of money that every Member is going to be able to use to pursue all of
this legislative activity, and there's a considerable amount of activity that goes on
there. You know as I said, not, not all of it is spent on personnel matters for
individual staff of, of the individual offices, and because of that it's hard to apply
a furlough percentage to that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for being straightforward on that,
because it, it's a difficult question that we need to ask ourselves. Member
Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Ken, for that
explanation. So, what you're saying then, as, as, as I understand it, our accounts
are basically what we do all of our both staff and our priorities as far as whatever
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we do in our communities, whatever conferences we attend, whatever we feel is
important for the furtherment [sic] and betterment of the people of Maui County.
That's our, our decision. Am I correct?
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FUKUOKA: And, and, and it's necessary because without it you'd have a lot of
disagreements. We used to have a lot of disagreements in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's why the, the, the equal amount was
given across the board.
MR. FUKUOKA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And in, in that account, just so that the public
understand, those outlying districts such as Molokai, Lanai, and Hana, their
additional travel and other per diem like that, comes out of central account, not
out of that account, right?
MR. FUKUOKA: It comes out of, right, that, that central account that is for-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That kind of purpose.
MR. FUKUOKA: --Council, Council-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: --Council expenses.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Council expenses. It's just like when we go for
public hearings on Lanai, Molokai. We go to Hana, we get per diem, mileage, all
that. That comes all basically out of the central, right? For public-MR. FUKUOKA: No, I...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --hearings that, like for budget, like we went for the
recent budget hearings.
MR. FUKUOKA: No, I think, I think the, the Committee type of travel...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, not Committee. Oh, yeah, Committee, oh
yeah, yeah Committee. Yeah, yeah, I'm sorry. Yeah, yeah, yeah. That's Budget
and Finance I'm sorry.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excuse me.
MR. FUKUOKA: It's handled by, in one way and then, the, the commuting type of
travel-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: --that is intended to equalize the Members, because, you know,
depending on your seat everybody has different expenses.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. FUKUOKA: The, that's handled in a different account, but, yeah, it, it is not
charged to the individual account.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just want the public to see, you know, because
they see so many dynamics and, and so they, you know, and we all come from
various districts. I'm fortunate I come from the very closest district right here;
my house is two miles away. I'm fortunate I don't travel as much as say
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, or Mr. Medeiros, or Ms. Baisa, you know, so they all travel
a lot further to get here than I do. And so I, I'm fortunate, but I'm just saying, so
the public understand these personal accounts really does our work, our staff, and
whatever they, we need done -- go public hearings, public meetings not that is
Committee-wise, but community meetings for example. I know Ms. Baisa goes
always to the Kula Community Association. I go to Waihee, Waikapu. We all
have these different things that we go to all the time to keep, or I have staff go to
it to, you know. So just so people understand and, and so what you're saying if
we were to do something here it would probably have to be more of a straight
percentage than trying to do it off of the, the individual salaries, because it, this,
this, this dollars we get is not just for salaries, it's for other items that we, that we
work on?
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so, so that's maybe what you're trying to
indicate. If we do something, Mr. Chair, it be, have to be more of a straight-up

- 43 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 15, 2010

percentage or a straight-up something to do that. As far as how we furlough, and
what we do in our office again falls back on us, right?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair, for that
clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now I was reading, Ken, your, your, your explanation
on your April 13, 2010, and it has to do with the Office of Council Services
budget, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, in the second page he says, furloughs for
Council Members are difficult to rationalize because their salaries are not based
on working hours. Also for this reason, Members are not allowed sick leave and
vacation leave. That's for us. Furlough adjustments for Council Executive
Assistant positions are...are also difficult to formulate. Each Council Member's
office compensates its staff differently. In other words, we pay on different, but
funding cuts should be applied equally. Explanation: What does that mean by
funding cuts should be applied equally and the reason, the justification for that?
MR. FUKUOKA: All I'm trying to say is that...I should have said it better, frankly...is
that it's important to keep the individual accounts equal. If you're going to cut
one, you should cut all equally or else eventually there is going to be an instability
because there will be dissatisfaction.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Fred, you know, in, in the County, the Mayor has
different people, some part-time, some full-time. Similarly different people earn
different amounts of money. Does that, is that coincide with what Ken said? I
just, you know what I mean, it's like-MR. PABLO: I'm not quite sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I'm looking myself in the mirror and going, okay, this
is what Administration has done with its employees in, in, in, in the cuts.
MR. PABLO: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Furlough cuts.
MR. PABLO: You're talking about the furlough cut?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. PABLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. PABLO: With, with the furlough cuts what we did of course, all HGEA employees
and UPW employees, whether they're paid from grant money, special revenues or
General Fund. All of them, because of the agreement have to be furloughed. So
we did that. With the other ones, the Mayor pulled down her executive order,
such as the directors, deputy directors, excluded managers, got some other
positions. The ones which were not covered by the furloughs are the ones that I
mentioned the other day when, Parks and Recreation came up they had hourly
employees. People just paid for the seasonal work. Those are not covered by the
furlough.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Some people are not being cut then?
MR. PABLO: The ones in the PALS Program, we, we have hourly employees that the
parks, Parks hire for, for the PALS Program-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. PABLO: --the summer programs. Those are seasonal hourly employees, so they
were not included.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess for fairness sake, Mr. Chairman, I think we need
to, to do it amongst our staff equally...I, I personally anyway. You know, I know
that certain people pay certain amount and other people pay certain amounts. And
I don't know, I, I guess in, in, in listening, no it's not listening, in our
circumstance I don't know what you're going to recommend, but, I mean,
anyway, are we going to all take cuts? I mean, I mean we should I guess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we all have an opportunity to review our own budget.
And we have an opportunity to make adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. But, but, Ken, none, none, no adjustments have
been made here, yeah, in the staff and, and...
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MR. FUKUOKA: No. No, if, if anybody would like help in trying to come up with a
way, it's not like its easy, because if it was easy...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's not easy?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, it's not easy, or, or I probably would have said, I would have
proposed something. But if, if anybody, if any of the Members need, need help,
the Administrative Support section can be helpful in that...I mean, coming up
with a proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I think we need to do it, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It, it, it's, it's difficult because of what you mentioned that each
of us, we pay our EAs at different levels. You know, would have been straight
forward if, if, you know, what Mr...the Budget Director had explained if
everybody had, you know, those progression type-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and equally, but...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess if I'm missing something, Mr. Chairman, I'd
like to hear from other Members also, because I just-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you know-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, for your...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I, I, I, because I, you know, I, I can say, but I want to
hear other people. Maybe they have other venues that I should look at.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you for your input though. Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass for now, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Pass for now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, this is one area that's very difficult to,
you know, get a real good grasp on. Now, but as Mr. Fukuoka had said, he'll, you
know, can provide some assistance to us in regards to our area. Okay, Members,
moving on. We'll go to equipment. Mr. Fukuoka?
MR. FUKUOKA: Mr Chair, our, our equipment is not, I guess a, a difficult issue
because it's primarily those big copiers and they are on lease.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's just a lease then on this one here?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ongoing?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, questions?
MR. FUKUOKA: I, I'm sorry, could I add something? We...we do have one that's
going to be re-procured by the time the next budget goes into effect, but, you
know, basically these are ongoing things. There's no significant expansion of
services or anything like that, that's anticipated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, questions on the equipment?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, seeing none, thank you, Mr. Fukuoka. And I'll, I know
I'm going to be meeting with you just to settle one issue. Okay, Members, that's
all we have for this morning for OCC as well as OCS. And, Members, the
Chair .just a reminder before we adjourn if you could clear your desk for
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tomorrow's Council meeting at 9 o'clock. So the Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for April 15 th is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 11:18 a.m.
APPROVED:

JOS H PONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:100415:clb

Transcribed by: Cynthia Los Banos
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